UNITED sramzs ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
' ' BEFORE TEE ADMINISTRATOR
. In the Matter of

.. Hoops Aérri-'Sa.i'es’Compa.nyv, - “Docket No. I.F.& 'R'.’.fVII-."1233'¢A]-'93.‘p'

" Respondent .

\'doﬁbEN oN”DENAULT o
On March 1 1994 Complainant U S Env1ronmental Protection'
Agency, Reglon VII f:Lled a Mot:Lon for a Default Order against
:--’: Hoops Ang. Sales Company (Respondent or Hoops), as a -result of -
Hoops fallure to file a prehearing exchange as directed by the
-unders1gned Adm1n1strat1ve Law. Judge (ALJ), by 1etter dated.\.»"
_ '“_ November 10 1993 On December 1 1994 I 1ssued an order denylng
Complalnant k= request for a default order and granted Respondent"
' additional time to prov1de ‘the 1nformat10n specifled J.n my 1etterl5__
of November 10 e At the same time, T invited Complainant to_"?-:"
) resubmit 1ts mot:Lon for a default order, 1f Respondent failed to o !
-"respond w1th1n the-additional time. To date ReSpondent has falled_
'Vto respond in any way to my order direct:.ng it to prov:.de the
spec1f1ed information, whereas, Complainant has resubmitted :.ts
'motion for a default order.:' Acs:ordingly, I find based on the c
s entire record in this matter, that‘ Complainant has established 1ts'-""'
prima facie case w1th respect to Counts I and III and that_'-"-';
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"'Reepondent by ite failure to eubmit ite prehearing exchange is 1ng

B default.r I hereby grant Complainant's motion for‘ a default;”'

order'y |
| This proceeding for the aeeeesment of a civ1l penalty was

_initiated on May 27 1993 by the Region VII,ofﬁice of_the U.S.
,_EnVironmental Protection Agency (EPA 'or Complainant).'against.'
.Respondent pursuant to Section 14 of the Federal Insectic1de,
#FUngiCide and RodentiCide Act, as amended {FIFRA or the Act),. '
iiU.Sfc. § 136;. The complaint charged Respondent with three (3)
:connte of-violating the Act;_ Counts I and II alleged that Hoops:'
failed to maintain proper documentation evxdenCing the eale ofﬂf
'.restricted -nse: pesticides '(RUPs)_; -required by-.the__Act,
sspeéificaliy, Count.I'alleged that\Invsits'ﬁo;.23537,”qstsd-dsne
'21 1991, and Invoice No 30348 dated Auguet 22 1992}:reﬁlectiﬁgg
the sales of the RUps “LASSO EC,“ and 'LASSO EC“ andt"AATnﬁx 4L, "
-to Gary Mitties and Larry Flamme, reepectively, failed to contain
- the products" EPA“I registration , nnmbere,‘_ he - purchasers'
Tcertification numberss-and the dates. of expiration of. the.
‘ certification numbers as required by 40-C F R. § 171 11(9)(2)(1)(8)

(C}. For thie alleged violation, it was.proposed_to assees”
fHOOpB a penalty of $5 ooo. S | - | p- . |

- Count II alleged that RUP application recorde, infdiCe;NoS;.

p28594fand 28595,.dated Jnne'zl,.l991{_for-the ealeiot'“BLADEx

\.

L Pursuant to 40 C.F. R. § 22.17, ‘thig Pefault Order

' conetitutee, for purposes of the. pending action” only, an_ i
admission-of all facts alleged in the. complaint and a waiver of

“-:Respondent 6 right to a hearing on. euch factual allegatione.'

'
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_'9om=- » to Bob and Ed Nesladek and the blend sheet, dat’éa .’Iune-is--" a
| 1991 failed to contain the EPA registration number, the complete
' -location and time of the pesticide application and the target pest, -
'. as required by 40 c. F R § 171 11(c) (7) (1) (B) ,: (C) ’ (E) rE and (F) .
._No separate penalty was demanded for this alleged violation.

As I pointed out in -my order denying Complainant 8 originalf.
motion for a default order, Count II is problematic in that the
;._'_regulation allegedly violated--40 C.F. R § 171 11 (c) (7) —-delineates
. reporting requirements ' for certified commerCial , applicators, |
'-'whereas, R Douglas Hoops was admittedly only a certified private '
".applicator__,, (See, Order Denying Motion for Default, December 1
‘l:'994 "ﬁote 1). While Respondent s actions may constitute a‘b |

--Violation of other requirements, clearly, Respondent can not be'
- charged Wlth Violation of reporting requirements that apply only to.
.'certified commerCial applicators. Accordingly, this default order':' |
‘_ concerns only Counts I and IIT of the complaint.,. _ ]
Count III while alleging erroneously t‘hat the application._
occurred on'June 19, 1992 (the correct date apparently being _'
June 21 1991) v concerned the application, referred to in Count II
_'of BLADEX 90DF to a. corn field operated by Bob and Ed Nesladek
The complaint alleged that the application was made by Respondent s

"employee, R.»' Douglas Hoops, in his capaCity as a commercial

- applicator, but that he was certified only as a. private applicator.-

The complaint further alleged that the application was not made

_"'-_under the superViSion of a certified commercial applicator..
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'For this alleged violation, Complainant proposed to assess Hoops a .

B

: penalty of $5 000. | S o
nIn af letter answer,_ dated June 17;‘ 1993 .ISigned by

{'Mr Robert A. Hoops, Hoops disputed certain facts alleged in the-'
complaint and contested the- amount of the penalty as excessive.
‘Hoops claimed that the nussing information was contained in a
'notebook which had: been. misplaced on the day of the inspection.
' Regarding Count III Hoops stated that the date of the application
of the - pestiCide,_as alleged in the complaint was erroneous and:

-*.that he was under the impreSSion that a. private applicator could"'

'i apply RUPs for others.‘;-

Based on Respondent's claims in its answer and the potential

defenses that such claims raised I denied Complainant s original o

_amotion for a default order Nevertheless, in 1ight of Respondent 8.
failure to respond to the original prehearing exchange order of._
l_November_lO, 1993 as well as. the order of December i, 1994 'and_l
uits‘ failure to file- its prehearing exchange: and to prov1de_
usupporting information for its claims, T find‘Respondent to be in
“_ldefault; Respondent's ansWer to the complaint does not. raige any
'matter which could support a dec1sion that Complainant has failed:l
:vlto establish a‘prima faCie case (With respect to Counts T and . III)
”or could justify the dismissal of the complaint._
' The following findings of fact and concluSions as to issues of-:

liability and penalty are made pursuant to Section 22 17(c) of thef

"Consolidated Rules, 40 -C.F. R Part 22 and are based on the entirep;y

_record including Complainant s proposed findings and conclusions,j..'

N li...'..




IND; GS OF FA ';"N LUSTONS |
1. “This is a civil administrative action initiated pursuant

‘:to ‘SeCtion _14‘-ofj the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and.

o RodentiCide Act as amended (FIFRA), 7 u. S C § 136;

2. The Complainant, jby lawful delegation from ‘the
Adminlstrator of EPA and the Regional Administrator, EPA Region

~VII is the Director of the Alr and Toxics DlVlSlon, EPA,_Region_
.VIl;_Qu~-;. S o .
3. The]Respondent'is'Hoops'AgriASales Company; West Highway.

-'30, North *Bend' Nebraska Ca pestiCide dealer and .certified

appliéatdr. Hoops Agrl Sales Company is a person,"_as defined by'“’

section. 2(s) of FIFRA, 7 u.s. Cc. 5 l36(s) o S if

_ "4. On or - about January 25 1993 a representative of EPA
'conducted a dealer ~and ‘certified applicator inspection - at
7Respondent’s fac1lity 1n North Bend Nebraska,' and obtained

documentary'samples pertaining to Respondent s sale and.application
:fof restricted use pesticxdes. A. -:r‘: - ‘f“I

- sf. Sales Inv010e No. 28587' dated{Junejzl,f1991,,f9f‘the

salejof_LASSO EC _a restricted use pesticmde, to Gary Mitties
ifailed, to .contain gthe' product s EPAA.registration _number;
'Mr Mitties' certification number, and the date of expirationrof
. the. certification number.f N _ |
6. Sales Inv01ce No 30348 dated August 22, -1992 for‘the
| sale of LASSO EC and AATREX 4L to Larry Flamme, failed to contain'”
;”the products' EPA registration numbers, Mr Flamme s certification‘
p:number, and the date of expiration of the Certification number.~:

'z .
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A Section 136w(a) of FIFRA 7 U. . c.. § 136w, authorizes the
‘.dAdmlnlstrator of EPA to prescrlbe regulatlons to carry out the

prov1sxons of Subtitle II of FIFRA.

_ 8. .;40.,,' c F. R. : § 171 11(g) (2) (i) (B) and (c')'zl a were”
promulgated by the Admlnlstrator pursuant to Sectron 136w(a)
”'FIFRA 7 U. S. C § 136w.. Failure to comply w1th these provl51ons 1s‘

.a v1olatlon ‘of - Sectlon 12(a)(2)(B)(1) of ¢FIFRAL 7 U.8.C. §
l'1363(a)(2)(B)(1) | o S o
, 9.>' Respondent s fallure £o malntaln records contalnlng the

'1nformat10n required by 40 C F R 5 171. 11(g)(2)(1)(B) and (C) for

:hsales of RUPs to Gary MlttleS (Sales Inv01ce No. 28587) and Larry?

¥ 40 C.F.R."§ 171.11(g).(2) (1)(B) and (C) provide in part
that: }r:} : : o e o R e
(1) - Certlfled appllcators. Each restrlcted use
pesticide retail dealer shall maintain at. each
individual .dealership records of -each -transaction where
.a restricted use pest1c1de is made available for use by
. that dealership to a certifled applicator. -Record of.
~ each such transaction shall be maintained for a perlod

©Of ‘24 months after the date of the transaction, and
shall 1nclude the followxng 1nformation-

(B) The certlficatlon number on the document
*_evidencing that - person’s certlflcatlon, the. State {oxr -
- other governmental unit) that igsued the document, the
- expiration date of the certification, and the -

categories in which the appllcator 1s certlfled
approprlate.‘;. .

_ -(G) - The product name, EPA reglstratlon number,

: and the State special local need registration number,
‘granted under section 24(e) of the FIFRA (if any) on j
“the’ 1abel of .the . pesticide.." ’

o ~
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ﬂ_~F1amme (Sales InVOice No 30348) constitutes a'violation of Section.v*h' /

C12(@) (2) (B) (4) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C..§ 13Gj(a) @@ @w. -3

" 10.- The restricted use pesticide application records for Bob”
.-and Ed Nesladek Invoice Numbers 28594 and 28595 dated o
June 21- 1991 and blend sheet dated June 19 1991 failed to‘
contain the EPA registration number of Bladex 90DF the complete
Tlocation of the pestiCide application, target pest, and the time of
Tfiapplication. ' ' B o | i_‘ P |
B L 11. on or about June 21 1§9I-kthe complaint-erroneouslyp_;
ffindicated June 19 1992), Respondent s employee R. Douglas Hoops,
:Aﬂwhile acting Within the .course. and scope of his employment With;"'
A--?Hoops Agri Sales, used and applied 167 5 pounds of BLADEX 90DF ‘a

t

restricted uSe pestiCide to Bob and Ed Nesladek's corn acreage in
iNorth Bend, Nebraska
.'12;' R Douglas Hoops is: certified as a private applicator as.
E defined at Section 2(e)(2) of FIFRA 7 U. S C. § 136(e)(2), and 40
.'C F R § 171 2(a)(20) under'Nebraska certification.number'NE754564...
13, gR,_ Douglas Hoops is not certified. as - commerCialAp
k'applicator as defined at Section 2(e)(3) of FIFRA 7 U 'S.C.  §
136(e)(3) and 40 C.F. R § 171 2(a)(9), nor - did he apply the RUP o
ttBLADEX 90DF under the direct superVision of a certified commerCial'
.fapplicator.'

~l4, Sections 3(d)(1)(C)(1) fiﬁ) of FIFRA. '7 U S C,_§

"'136a(d)(1)(c)(i) and (ii), state that a. restricted use pesticidei

_ shall be' applied for any use to which the restricted use

_classification applies only by or;under the direct supervision of,f<

N ‘/:‘.‘_
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| e | |
" a certified applicator-\ 40 C.F.E. s 171.2 (a) (e) defines “Gertified
"1applicator," as. any indiV1dual who is certlfied tO'use OL. supervise.v
the use ©Of 'any reatricted use.: pesticides covered ;by pise
.dcertificatlon.>. _" ' o ,
15." Respondent s action in mak:.ng available for use the
‘.BLADEX 90DF referred to in paragraph 11 above to R. Douglas Hoops
for commerc1al use and. appllcation wdas not . in accordance with
:Sectlon 3(d) of FIFRA 7 U. S C § 1363(d),_1n that. Mr. Hqus was‘e
rnot_certif;ed to‘use_reetr;ctedeuse pesticides ae:a co@ﬁercial
"appilcator. ﬁespendent'e adtibn COnEtituted a'violation Qf4
" -Sectlon 12(a) (2 (F) of FIFRA 7 U s.c. § 1363 (@) (2) (F) ¥

¥ gection 136](a)(2)(F) of FIFRA prov1des, in part, that-
-ﬂz) It shall be unlawful for any person’ --

.. - ‘> -
! i

(F) to dlstrlbute or sell or to make - available
for use, or to use, any registered pesticide classified
" for restricted use for some or all- -purposes other than.
in accordance with section 136a(d) oﬁ this title and
any regulations thereunder,‘ - e S

- - L] '
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' 16.; On: July"igsidi995 this matter was assigned to the.;
;underslgned ALJ -and by 1etter, dated November 10, 1993, the ALJ.
-ffdirected the parties to exchange prehearing information— on-or"
'_before January 28 1994 and directed Complainant to file 'a
statement on or before January 7, 1994 as to. whether this matter‘
had been or would be settled. '. .
-17;< On January 6 1994, Complalnant advrsed the ALJ ‘that the-
partles had dlscussed settlement and that if Respondent prov1ded‘
Certaln-flnancial-inﬁormataon, Complarnant_believedfthe matter

' could be settled.

Y Respondent wWas. directed to provide the follow1ng
1nformat10n and/or documents: ‘

"1; If notebook, referred_tb'in'answer, ugsed .to record
' customer certification number and date-of .
expiration, listings of product registration .
‘numbers, and restricted use pesticides and théir .
) reglstratlon numbers has been located prov1de a
. COpY - -

2. ~ Provide a copy'of commercial'certificatlon for -,
- . Robert A Hoops and for your employee, R. Douglas
Hoops. _

- 3. .tExplain statement in 1etter -answer that date of
‘ application referred to. 1n Count III of complalnt
is. incorrect. :

LAl If Respondent 15 contendlng proposed penalty would
- .. adversely effect its ability to continue in
hbusiness, furnish. finanoial -statements, . copies of -

. income tax returns or other evidence to- eupport .
.such contentionrf.\ , ' -

. [ ]
L




'16 Respondent failed to provide the requested financ1al?'
_ .information to Complainant and- on: January 28 ,1994 Complainant»-
’n.filed its prehearing*exchange.‘ f_ | » _ N
\_ ‘19. Respondent failed to file its prehearing exchange orh
request an extension of time to do 80. ‘ ' .
| 20. On March 1, _19_94 Complainant filed a motion fora”
defaultlbrder' - B \ o |
o1, on December 1 199451the ALJ 1ssued an order denying'
'Complainant s request for a default order Based-on Hoops' claims:
l.that it had potential defenses to the alleged violations and that\_d
fthe proposed penalty did not comport With the sales category in-
R which Respondent 'should ~be’ placed the -ALJ concluded thatf
:~Respondent should be given additional time until December 29 1994_’
to comply With the requirement for a. prehearing exchange : In the‘
'event of Respondent s failure to. prov1de the demanded 1nformation;f
‘Complainant was 1nv1ted to renew 1ts motion for a default order.'
“A22.' Respondent falled to comply With the ALJ's order of'
fDecember 1 1994 and on January 9, 1995 Complainant renewed 1tsb
: motion for a default order._" \y ' - | |
| 23. Respondent has (1) failed to comply w1th the prehearing
'order of November 10 _1993 (2) failed to respond to Complainant s
‘motion for a default order, (3) failed to complyrw1th the order of

R;Decemher 1, 1994, and.(4) failed to respond to the renewal of

Ty
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Complainant s motion for a default order.., 'Therefofe, Ifind
' Respondent in default. pursuant to 40 C F. R. 22. 17(a) 3 .

24. 'Pursuant to 40 C. F R § 22 17(a), Respondent s default'
- constltutes an. admlssion of all the facts alleged 1n the complaint,L

and a walver of Respondent's right to a hearlng on such factual

aLlegatlonsr
- PENAL ' _ P
Section 14 (am; of Fmii\‘, 7 U.5.C. sila/s‘;-(ba) (1), -authorizes
the Admlnlstrator - of EPh to collect~ a oivil penalty ‘inf
admlnlstrative penalty actzoné of up to $5 000 for each v101atlon'
of FIFRA ¢ Section 14(a) (4) of FIFRA 7 U. s c. § lBG;L(a) (4),'
‘prequlres that EPA con81der the approprlateness of the penalty to'
the size of ‘the bu51ness of the person charged the effect on the
person,s ablllty to contlnue 1n buelness, and the grav1ty of the

nﬁiolation. The FIFRA. Enforcement Response Pollcy (ERP), dated

¥ As lndlcated above, this default is llmited to the facts
and allegations contained in Counts I and.III of the complalnt.

: Sectlon l4(a)(1) of FIFRA, 7 U.S,C..§ 1361(a)(1),
provides~ ‘ : T R R

’

: (1) In general.-—Any registrant commercial
applicator, wholesaler, . dealer, retailer, or.other
‘distributor who violates any provision of this-

..subchapter may be asgessed a civil penalty by the .. .
Administrator of not more. than $S 000 for each oﬁfense.,

N
- EAE
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. 16u1j‘2“—1990 -provides3a five—step‘penalty computation.process (or o

o matrlx) that cons;ders the factors required by . Section 14(a)(4) of

FIFRA The ‘ERP matrtx was used to calculate ‘the civil penalty
assessed against Respondent.f{ | A
Based on 1ts assessment of the factors requlred to be
“considered by Section 14(a)(4) of FIFRA and the ERP Complalnant
".proposed to: assess a penalty of $10 000 agalnst Respondent. This
‘penalty was split equally between Counts I and IIT for whlch
Complalnant assessed penaltles of $5 000 each based on the grav1ty
, of the V1olatlons and the s1ze.of Respondent's business._ There was
no clalnl by Respondent that the penalty' would> comprOmlse 1ts
bab111ty to contlnue Ln bu51ness._ No penalty was assessed agalnst
;Respondent for the V1olat10n alleged 1n Count IT of the complalnt
f'apparently because the regulatlon that allegedly was vxolated in
ACount II applles to commerc1al appllcators. A
Although Respondent 1ndicated in 1ts answer that the. proposed

,penaltyh was excesslve in =11ght‘,of ‘the slze of 1ts business,

_Respondent has failed ‘to' proVide any 1nformat10n to refute .

Complalnant 'S, calculatlon of the. penalty In calculatlng the 51ze
'of Respondent s business, Complalnant reasonably relied on the ‘only
~inf0rmat10n avallable to 1t, namely, the Dun and Bradstreet report

' whlch 1nd1cated that Respondent s progected sales for the year in

L question. were between $900 000 - $1 000 000. There is nothing in
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13 A
the record to refute this information. Moreover, Complainant'S'n
determination that the violations warranted.a gravity level of 2 is
a reasonable assessment based on the ERP. Accordingly, I-conclude,--
based on the entire record that Complainant has properly'

' conS1dered the factors delineated 1n the Act . and the ERP and the
c1v1l penalty .°f .$lp,QOO assessed_ against_ Respondentr_is

appropriate.

| onbgaﬂ' o ) |
IT Is ORDERED pursuant to Section 14 of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C..§
1361 that Respondent Hoops Agri Sales Company, be assessed a;i
C1v11 penalty of. $10 000 for v1olation of 40 ‘C. F. R ‘§ 171 11(9) and
Section 12(a) of FIFRA 7 U S C.=§ 1363(a)

Payment of the full amount of the penalty assessed shall be"

\

- made by forwarding a cashier s or certlfied check payable to the
Treasurer of the United States, to the follow1ng address w1thin
.slxty (60) days_of»the date-of_this:order:.
U. S Env1ronmental Protection Agency, Region VII
Regional Hearing Clerk . _ -

P.O. Box 360748M
Pittsburgh PA "15251

- ¥ pursuant to 40. C.F.R.' § 22. 17(b), this order constitutes
“an. Initial Decision. Unless an appeal is taken pursuant to 40

"~ C.F.R.'§ 22.30(a) or the Environmental Appeals Board elects to
review this decision, sua sponte, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § -

.22.30(b),. this order shall -become the final order of the

Environmental Appeals Board in accordance with - 40 C.F.R. §
22 27(c) . , A . _ .




‘,;- :.‘ 14 | :
A transmittal letter,, glving' Respondent 8 name, cempiete
rttaddress, and Docket No VII- 1233C 93P mmst accompany the payment. _
A copy of the check and transmittal letter shall also be mailed to»rr'

the Reglonal Hearing Clerk at the follow1ng address-

"U.S. Env1ronmental Protection, Agency
"Regional Hearing: Clerk, Region VII
726 Minnesota Avenue

Kansas City, Kansas 66101

e

Dated this . /

day of May 1995.

RS

:Spenéér T. N:Lssen S
Admlnistratlve Law Judge




